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          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  I guess that my, the other

          4  members of the Committee are not here yet, and I

          5  think they might be coming soon.  Meanwhile, we are

          6  going to start with the hearing.

          7                 This is a public hearing of the

          8  Senior Citizen Committee.  My name is Reverend Ruben

          9  Diaz, I am the Chairperson of this Committee.  To my

         10  left is Council Member Helen Foster, a member of the

         11  Committee, and to my right is the Counsel of the

         12  Committee, Cheree Buggs.

         13                 When I got elected back in March I

         14  had a public hearing and I was approached by a few

         15  groups.  Among them JPAC, and they asked me to look

         16  into this EPIC Program, and they suggested that we

         17  go into supporting the Senate Bill 1165.  And

         18  therefore, we drafted a Resolution and present it

         19  back in March, and today we are going to deal with

         20  that.

         21                 It is regarding the EPIC Program, the

         22  Elderly Pharmaceutical Insurance Coverage.  It was

         23  established in 1987 to help senior citizens, 65

         24  years and older, who are low- to moderate income

         25  resident of New York State pay for their
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          2  prescription drugs. There are two different plans,

          3  one called fee plan, the other is a deductible plan.

          4                 The fee plan is for single

          5  individuals with income up to $20,000, and for

          6  married couples with income from $26,001 to $35,000.

          7    I mean from, the first one, the fee plan is up

          8  $20,000 for single individuals to married couples up

          9  to $26,000.  They have to pay a fee from $8.00 to

         10  $300.

         11                 The second plan, the deductible plan

         12  is for single individuals with income from $20,001

         13  to $35,000, and married couples with income from

         14  $26,001 to $50,000.  These participants will have a

         15  deductible from $530 to $1,715.

         16                 Today we are conducting this hearing,

         17  which calls for the New York State Legislature to

         18  adopt Senate Bill 1165- A, which will amend the law

         19  to limit the cost sharing responsibility to

         20  participant of the EPIC Program to 5 percent of the

         21  gross income.  So I am glad that you are here today,

         22  we will start listening to testimonies regarding

         23  different position on this Resolution No. 60,

         24  introduced by the Aging Committee back in March.

         25                 Our first participants are Donna
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          2  Tessitore, Assistant Commissioner from the

          3  Department for the Aging.  Good morning,

          4  Commissioner.  Did I pronounce you name correct?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          6  Good morning, Councilman.  Tessitore.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, good

          8  morning.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         10  Good job.  Good morning, Chairman Diaz and members

         11  of the New York City Council Committee on Aging.  My

         12  name is Donna Tessitore, and I am Assistant

         13  Commissioner for the Bureau of Senior Assistance and

         14  Benefits of the New York City Department for the

         15  Aging.  And I am joined by my colleague, Katie

         16  Mendez, who is our Director of Legislative Affairs.

         17  I am pleased to be here to represent Commissioner

         18  Edwin Mendez- Santiago and to speak about Council

         19  Resolution No. 60 and the Elderly Pharmaceutical

         20  Insurance Coverage program.

         21                 The Department for the Aging provides

         22  assistance on health insurance matters through our

         23  Information and Referral Helpline and Walk- in

         24  Center, and through our Health Insurance

         25  Information, Counseling, and Assistance Program
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          2  (HIICAP).  This program uses trained volunteers to

          3  assist seniors citywide with their health care

          4  coverage questions and paper work, including

          5  enrollment in EPIC.  HIICAP also produces literature

          6  in several languages to inform the senior

          7  population, family members and professionals about

          8  the range of health care options and entitlements.

          9                 Resolution No. 60 calls upon the New

         10  York State Legislature to enact Senate Bill 1165- A

         11  sponsored by Senator Gentile.  In the Assembly, the

         12  bill's counterpart is A.3972- A, sponsored by

         13  Assemblywoman Millman.  The bill calls for the

         14  Elderly Pharmaceutical Insurance Coverage Program to

         15  establish a cost sharing responsibilities limit of 5

         16  percent of an EPIC recipient's gross income, thus

         17  reducing the financial burden for participants in

         18  the program.

         19                 The New York City Department for the

         20  Aging applauds the many successes of the EPIC

         21  program so far, and its recent enhancements that

         22  make many more seniors eligible to participate.

         23  Prescription drug costs have skyrocketed in recent

         24  years, and for seniors in particular, this can be an

         25  especially great financial burden.
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          2                 The EPIC program has been in place in

          3  New York State for 15 years.  New York State

          4  residents over 65 who meet income eligibility levels

          5  can enroll in EPIC and obtain their needed

          6  medications by paying an annual deductible and a co-

          7  payment for each prescription filled.  At the end of

          8  2000, there were 135,000 seniors enrolled in EPIC.

          9  As a result of legislation that took effect on

         10  January 1, 2001, providing higher income eligibility

         11  levels for EPIC qualification, the number of

         12  enrollees has expanded to 273,500 senior.

         13                 The popularity of EPIC is based on

         14  the flexibility of the program.  It permits an

         15  enrollee to present a prescription for any

         16  medication, generic or brand- name, to any

         17  participating pharmacy in New York State.  EPIC

         18  enjoys broad participation from the pharmacy

         19  community, including major chain drugstores as well

         20  as small independent enterprises.  Most pharmacies

         21  link their computer services to EPIC, thus providing

         22  the additional protection of noting any potential

         23  drug prescription conflicts for an enrollee. EPIC

         24  has an active outreach program including television,

         25  radio and print, media public service announcements,
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          2  staff outreach representatives, a full- time Hotline

          3  and multi- lingual applications and literature.

          4                 The Department for the Aging is all

          5  too aware of the problems that seniors face

          6  obtaining their medications.  Seniors pay more in

          7  out- of- pocket costs for prescription medication

          8  than any other age group.  We are pleased to be able

          9  to inform older New Yorkers about the EPIC Program

         10  and assist them with their application, but there

         11  are still financial barriers for some seniors.

         12                 Two groups are most affected by the

         13  costs of EPIC. Married couples who face very high

         14  deductibles per spouse under EPIC's deductible plan

         15  before they qualify for reduced prescription co-

         16  payments, and lower- income married couples who must

         17  pay two fees to enroll in EPIC's fee program are one

         18  group.

         19                 The second group who have a hard time

         20  affording prescription drugs, even with EPIC

         21  benefits, are those seniors who require numerous

         22  medications.  In addition to their enrollment fee or

         23  deductible, they face many high co- payments.  Very

         24  few medications now retail for under $55 per refill,

         25  which means a $20 co- payment for each prescription
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          2  filled.  With multiple prescriptions, the out- of-

          3  pocket costs are till prohibitive for many seniors.

          4                 The Department for the Aging would

          5  like to see a reduction of EPIC co- payment levels,

          6  especially in the top bracket, in order to assist

          7  seniors with costly medication.  EPIC should also

          8  reduce its fee or deductible for couples to less

          9  than 2 times the individual rate, essentially

         10  establishing a family rate.  The program would then

         11  be able to attract even more seniors.  The

         12  Department for the Aging supports the Council's

         13  Resolution and 1165 as a clear means to limit the

         14  cost sharing responsibilities of seniors who enroll

         15  in the EPIC program.  The rapidly increasing cost of

         16  prescription medications and their broader use as

         17  health sustaining drugs can present a major problem

         18  for seniors with limited financial means.  Even with

         19  the excellent support of EPIC in New York State, the

         20  required fees or deductibles for participation in

         21  this program, combined with co- payments, are too

         22  burdensome for many potential applicants.  The

         23  portion of their income which must go towards fees

         24  and deductibles alone can exceed 6 percent.  With

         25  most seniors living on fixed incomes, the impact of
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          2  their overall finances is substantial.

          3                 Resolution 60 to support S.1165- A

          4  and cap an individual senior's cost- sharing

          5  responsibility at 5 percent of gross income is a

          6  step towards protecting the financial stability of

          7  low and moderate income participants.  I would like

          8  to point out two other bills in the State

          9  Legislature, which also seek to make enhancements to

         10  the EPIC program.  Assembly 5149 would ensure that

         11  seniors participating in the program do not become

         12  ineligible simply because of a cost of living

         13  increase in public benefits such as Social Security.

         14    The other bill is A.10142, which seeks to simplify

         15  the program and further reduce costs to

         16  participants, thus encouraging more seniors to

         17  apply.

         18                 Medicare Prescription Drug proposals

         19  being discussed in Washington would not offer as

         20  generous a prescription drug benefit as the EPIC

         21  Program now offers to New York State Senior

         22  residents.

         23                 House Republicans have developed a

         24  proposal that would require a $250 deductible and

         25  monthly premiums of $35 to $40 for most seniors.
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          2  Seniors below 135 percent of the Federal Poverty

          3  Level would receive complete coverage without cost

          4  to them, and seniors between 135 percent and 150

          5  percent of poverty level would receive a partial

          6  subsidy.

          7                 House Democrats have a proposal that

          8  includes a $100 deductible and monthly premiums of

          9  $25.  Seniors under 150 percent of Federal Poverty

         10  levels would receive a full subsidy for benefits,

         11  while those between 150 and 175 percent of poverty

         12  would receive a partial subsidy.

         13                 On the Senate side, the Democratic

         14  plan call for $25 in monthly premiums and no

         15  deductible, complete subsidies for those below 135

         16  percent of poverty, and partial subsidies for those

         17  between 135 percent and 150 percent of poverty.

         18                 All three proposals would require co-

         19  payments for prescriptions.  These proposals would

         20  still be more costly than New York State's expanded

         21  EPIC program, with its eligibility levels of $35,000

         22  for a single and $50,000 for a married couple.

         23  Additionally, New York State has long supported the

         24  health care needs of its low- income senior

         25  residents through Medicaid coverage. Therefore, the
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          2  Department for the Aging believes that any Medicare

          3  Prescription Drug proposal that is enacted federally

          4  should not replace the EPIC program for older New

          5  Yorkers.  As federal plans unfold, the Department

          6  for the Aging, the City Council and advocates for

          7  seniors should work with the State to ensure that

          8  EPICondyle supplements and enhances federal

          9  benefits.

         10                 I would like to thank you again for

         11  this opportunity to speak in support of the EPIC

         12  Program, and of the efforts of the New York City

         13  Council to work towards further improving and

         14  strengthening EPIC.  I look forward to working

         15  together to continue our EPIC outreach efforts, and

         16  to advocate for further improvements in prescription

         17  drug coverage for older New Yorkers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you,

         19  Commissioner Tessitore.  I deeply appreciate the

         20  Department for the Aging support to Resolution No.

         21  60, and give my regards to the Honorable

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         24  will do that, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I was joined by
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          2  Council Member Gallagher.  I don't know if any one

          3  of the Council members have any questions.

          4                 Thank you, thank you for your

          5  testimony.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  The next is

          9  Elyce Roberts from JPAC.  Good morning.

         10                 MS. ROBERTS:  My name is Elyce

         11  Roberts.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Ms. Roberts, would

         13  you please, your microphone is off.

         14                 MS. ROBERTS:  Okay, thank you.  Good

         15  morning.  My name is Elyce Roberts, and I am

         16  testifying today on behalf of the Joint Public

         17  Affairs Committee, JPAC for older adults.  JPAC is a

         18  senior citizen advocacy groups made up of

         19  representatives for more than 700 senior centers,

         20  religious institutions, and community and labor

         21  retiree groups around the City.

         22                 We appreciate the opportunity to talk

         23  today about the problem of prescription drug costs

         24  and coverage.  Let me begin by saying that JPAC

         25  supports City Council Resolution 60 calling for the
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          2  passage of State bill S.1165- A.  The high cost of

          3  prescription drugs continues to be a big problem for

          4  older New Yorkers.  Survey after survey, and my own

          5  personal experience, shows that prescription drug

          6  costs continues to rise, and the lack of the

          7  prescription drug coverage is becoming a bigger

          8  problem.  More than one in four seniors pay at least

          9  $1,000 a year, out- of- pocket, for medications.

         10                 EPIC was great when it was started in

         11  the late 1980s and was made even better with the

         12  income expansion passed in 2000. That said, we

         13  strongly believe that it could be even better.  Even

         14  seniors on the EPIC program pay the price of hugely

         15  inflated drug costs.  Co- payment levels are set

         16  depending on the price of the drugs.  And for those

         17  above the $20,000 line, out- of- pocket deductibles

         18  must be met before EPIC coverage kicks in.  This

         19  means that seniors are still left to pay high costs

         20  even with EPIC coverage.  S.1165- A, sponsored by

         21  State Senator Gentile of Brooklyn, would cap out-

         22  of- pocket cost- sharing in EPIC to 5 percent of

         23  gross income, and we support the Resolution No. 60

         24  calling for passage of this important bill.

         25                 We appreciate the advocacy of the
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          2  City Council in passing this legislation and would

          3  like to encourage you to also advocate for passage

          4  of the companion bill in the Assembly, A.3972 A.

          5  Finally, we strongly believe that the ultimate

          6  answer to this big problem is affordable coverage

          7  for prescription medications within Medicare.  Short

          8  of that, we are urging the state and federal

          9  government to pass legislation that would limit the

         10  amount that pharmaceutical companies could charge

         11  for their medications. We encourage the City Council

         12  to lend their advocacy in support of both of these

         13  answers as well.

         14                 No senior should have to choose

         15  between paying for medicine or food.  We appreciate

         16  your willingness to listen to our concerns today,

         17  and we encourage you to educate your constituents

         18  about this state proposal.

         19                 Thank you for your time and

         20  attention.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Ms.

         22  Roberts.  And I appreciate, as the Chairman of the

         23  Committee, I would like to express my appreciation

         24  on behalf of the Committee to JPAC support of

         25  Resolution 60- A, because it was amended to include
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          2  also Assembly Bill 3972- A.

          3                 MS. ROBERTS:  Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So we are in

          5  support of both Senate Bill 1165- A and Assembly

          6  Bill 3972- A.  And all before you leave, I would

          7  like to also express my appreciation to JPAC and to

          8  so many other different groups that since I took

          9  Office in January of this year, has been very

         10  helpful in advising me and giving me ideas.  And

         11  today we are doing one of those ideas and the

         12  suggestions from JPAC and other groups.  So thank

         13  you.

         14                 I was joined by Council Member

         15  Michael Nelson.  And I don't know if any one of the

         16  Council members have any questions. No.  Thank you,

         17  Ms. Roberts, have a good day.

         18                 The next person will be Lani Sanjek

         19  from New York Statewide Senior Action Council.

         20                 MS. SANJEK:  Good morning, Chairman

         21  Diaz and members of the Committee and Council.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Could you wait a

         23  minute?

         24                 MS. SANJEK:  Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Council Member
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          2  Gallagher and other Council members, we are going to

          3  vote today, so don't, - - thank you.

          4                 MS. SANJEK:  Good morning, Chairman

          5  Diaz and members of the Committee and the Council.

          6  I'm Lani Sanjek, Associate Director of New York

          7  Statewide Senior Action Council.  We are an advocacy

          8  organization of thousands of seniors and senior

          9  organizations throughout New York State.  We want to

         10  commend and thank Chairman Diaz and the Committee

         11  for this Resolution seeking relief for EPIC

         12  participants from the high cost- sharing burdens of

         13  the program.  We take special pride in the EPIC, our

         14  organization was there in December of 1986, when New

         15  York State enacted the EPIC program, and we have

         16  been working to try to make improvements over the

         17  years.

         18                 We strongly support this resolution

         19  setting a limit on the total cost- sharing to no

         20  more than 5 percent of annual income for EPIC

         21  participants.  We note that more than 75 percent of

         22  EPIC participants are at or below 200 percent of the

         23  Federal Poverty Income Guidelines, for singles that

         24  would be $17,720, for married $23,880, and this

         25  groups also includes about 16 percent or almost
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          2  37,000 seniors who actually have annual incomes that

          3  would qualify them for Medicaid.  The current out-

          4  of- pocket expenditures are approximately 9 percent

          5  for singles and 7 percent for married. We have many

          6  members who depend upon the EPIC program, but are

          7  finding it more and more difficult to keep up with

          8  the out- of pocket costs.  Most medicines are now

          9  priced well over the $55 amount requiring the

         10  highest $20 co- payments per prescription, and with

         11  multiple medications each month, out- of- pocket

         12  costs exceeding $100 are common.  For those in the

         13  deductible part of the program, it is a struggle to

         14  find the as much as $530 to $1,715 before they can

         15  even benefit from the program.

         16                 So currently, the EPIC participants

         17  are paying from between 1.2 percent to 3 percent in

         18  an enrollment fee or deductible, and then they must

         19  cover additional co- payments from about 4 percent

         20  to 6.1 percent of their incomes before they can

         21  fully qualify for 100 percent coverage.  This

         22  problem of out- of pocket burdens has been a problem

         23  since the beginning of EPIC and has been a major

         24  barrier to participation.  And although the

         25  improvements have been made over the years,
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          2  including the recent change to link EPIC

          3  reimbursements to the Medicaid pricing discounts,

          4  these are still not going to be able to keep up with

          5  the steeply rising prices of medications and the

          6  greater utilization of sole- source, brand- name

          7  drugs.

          8                 While we would like to hope that

          9  Congress will enacted a comprehensive, affordable

         10  prescription drug benefit in the Medicare program

         11  this year, I fear that we will need to rely on EPIC

         12  for the foreseeable future.  So, it is particularly

         13  important that EPIC address this cost- sharing

         14  burden, because it is, indeed, a real safety net for

         15  those, particularly, with high medication costs.

         16                 I think it is also important to make

         17  sure that the New York State Legislature does not

         18  allow any new federal dollars made available for

         19  subsidies for low- income Medicare beneficiaries

         20  drug costs to be diverted to other purposes.  With

         21  that in mind, I have appended a list of other

         22  improvements that we believe should be made to the

         23  EPIC Program in order to better serve New York

         24  seniors and people with disabilities who continue to

         25  face the hardships and suffering created by the
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          2  crisis of high priced medicines.  This lists the

          3  priorities of the New York Network for Action on

          4  Medicare and Social Security's Prescription Drug

          5  Work Group, we are a coalition of over 60

          6  organizations throughout the State concerned about

          7  the future of our nation's social insurance

          8  programs.  You will see on that list a number of the

          9  features of the EPIC Program that we think continue

         10  to need legislative action, as well as the list of

         11  pieces of State Legislation that we have been

         12  monitoring during this pass session.

         13                 So we look forward to working

         14  together with the Aging Committee and the City

         15  Council on this agenda.  And thank you for the

         16  opportunity to testify.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Ms.

         18  Sanjek.  And on behalf of the Committee, again, I

         19  would also like to express my thanks, my

         20  appreciation to the Statewide Senior Action Council

         21  for the support of Resolution 60- A.

         22                 I was joined by two members of the

         23  Council, Council Member Erik Dilan and Council

         24  Member Simcha Felder.

         25                 Clifton Rutherford, Jamaica Service
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          2  Program, Clifton Rutherford.

          3                 MR. RUTHERFORD:  Chairman Diaz and

          4  all the other members of the Council, good morning.

          5  My name is Clifton Rutherford, the Chairperson of

          6  Jamaica Service Program for Older Adults and Action

          7  Coalition.  I'm grateful for the opportunity to

          8  testify on behalf of the older adults living in

          9  southeastern community of Queens.

         10                 The Jamaica Service Program for Older

         11  Adults serves over 5,000 seniors through programs

         12  such as Senior Employment, Medical Transportation,

         13  and this covers five senior centers, which services

         14  with in- home services and social services.

         15                 We are aware of the impact of the

         16  cost of prescription drugs has on our members.

         17  Statistics show that seniors pay $1,000 a year out-

         18  of- pocket expenses for medication. Those who are

         19  covered by HMOs for medication find themselves

         20  paying for brand name drugs or quickly exhausting

         21  the cap they have which can range from $1,500 to

         22  $2,000 per year.  Since drug prices are projected to

         23  rise another 15 percent this year, seniors who are

         24  already struggling to meet their household expenses

         25  will be faced with an additional financial burden.

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 New York State's Elderly

          3  Pharmaceutical Insurance Coverage (EPIC) has helped

          4  them in paying drug cost, but they still have to pay

          5  premiums, fees, co- payments and deductibles.  We

          6  are therefore in favor of capping out- of- pocket

          7  expenses, which we call COPE, C- O- P- E, ensuring

          8  that they will pay no more than 5 percent of their

          9  income for prescription drugs.

         10                 We still want Medicare to fund

         11  prescription drugs, this would be the ideal

         12  situation.  We are hoping that the New York State

         13  Legislature adopts Senate Bill 116- A (sic), which

         14  would amend the Executive Law to cap EPIC

         15  participant's out- of- pocket costs.

         16                 Again, Chairman Diaz, we want to

         17  thank you very much for your support, and the

         18  members of the panel, and we hope that this

         19  presentation will be joined by the other Boroughs,

         20  of Queens, therefore, supporting the idea of a

         21  government of the people, by the people, for the

         22  people.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Rutherford.  I don't know if the members want to ask

         25  a question.  On behalf of the Aging Committee, first
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          2  of all, I would like to express my appreciation, - -

          3                 MR. RUTHERFORD:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ: - -  to the Jamaica

          5  Service Program for Older Adult Service, for their

          6  support to Resolution 60- A.

          7                 I don't know if any one of the

          8  members would like to ask any questions, if not,

          9  thank you, Mr. Rutherford, we appreciate your

         10  participating.

         11                 MR. RUTHERFORD:  All right, thanks,

         12  again.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Shirley Genn from

         14  Brooklyn- wide Interagency Council of the Aging.

         15                 MS. GENN:  Good morning.  I am really

         16  so pleased to have another opportunity to speak to

         17  you and address you about this important concern.

         18  It is really so wonderful that you have called so

         19  many meetings that there is an issue and it gives us

         20  the opportunity to present testimony.

         21                 So, number one, I do want to thank

         22  you very much. Pretty soon, Mr. Diaz, we are going

         23  to be kissing cousins, I have seen you so many times

         24  at so many meetings recently.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I would like you
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          2  to come to the Bronx and tell that to my

          3  constituents.

          4                 MS. GENN:  Any time.  My name is

          5  Shirley Genn, and I am the Director of Public Policy

          6  Education for the Brooklyn- wide Interagency Council

          7  of the Aging.  As we are a consumer- dominated

          8  organization, which means that the seniors,

          9  themselves, select those things that they think are

         10  of most importance.  And it is staff people, like

         11  myself, who then go out and do all the necessary

         12  footwork and training for them.  We represent over

         13  300,000 seniors residing throughout our Borough, and

         14  I'm particularly pleased to see many of our Brooklyn

         15  representatives here today.

         16                 I first want to thank you for taking

         17  a citywide leadership role in the City Council by

         18  proposing Resolution No. 60 A, in support of State

         19  Legislation S.1165- A and the other numerous parts

         20  of legislation that I hope you will look at that all

         21  deal with EPIC.

         22                 Before the income eligibility was

         23  raised, on October 1, 2001, 29,310 seniors in New

         24  York City had EPIC, in Brooklyn the number was 9,819

         25  EPIC participants.  Let's look at today.  Since
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          2  January 2002, there are now 73,000 EPIC customers in

          3  New York City, and 22,041 in Brooklyn.  From its

          4  inception, which was around 1986, because Brooklyn-

          5  wide has been with many other groups, part of the

          6  group that worked to establish EPIC and support

          7  legislators, the State originally had 39,000 EPIC

          8  members.  Today, New York State has 281,831 EPIC

          9  members according the latest data I got from EPIC.

         10                 The average EPIC member fills 36

         11  prescriptions per year.  Under the fee program the

         12  average income was $14,000, the member paid a $60

         13  fee, and $2,301 for drugs.  I think, time have to

         14  look, yes, if the member had paid 5 percent, it

         15  would have been $700.

         16                 Under the deductible program, the

         17  average income of $28,000 a member pays $840 in

         18  deductible and $2,151 for drugs.  I split it up so

         19  it is just per person.  And the cost would be

         20  $2,991, 5 percent would be $1,300.

         21                 There are 8 percent of seniors over

         22  85 years of age and the number and percentage

         23  increase annually.  We live longer and we hope to

         24  continue to do so, but prescription drugs is an

         25  essential component for maintaining good health.
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          2                 Some HMOs have discontinued providing

          3  prescription drugs.  Others have increased co- pays.

          4    Med. Supp. Policies have increased their premiums.

          5    Add to this the cost of housing, food, et cetera,

          6  and the 9/11 tragedy and its consequence to the

          7  health and well- being of our most vulnerable

          8  population, and Voila!  You have a larger and

          9  increasingly needy senior population for whom the

         10  essential drugs to maintain life and health are

         11  unaffordable.

         12                 The proposal before us, where EPIC

         13  members have fees or deductibles and co- pays, is

         14  not for nothing.  Premiums or deductibles are based

         15  upon income.  Should our State and City leave these

         16  people unprotected?  What is government's

         17  responsibility?

         18                 It is not too much to ask to expect

         19  that New York State EPIC limit the cost- sharing

         20  responsibilities of its participants for both

         21  comprehensive and catastrophic coverage to no more

         22  than 5 percent of the eligible participants' gross

         23  income, effective immediately.

         24                 Thank you so much for your help and

         25  support.  We do sincerely appreciate it.  And I will
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          2  be happy to answer any questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Ms. Genn, thank

          4  you very much for your support on behalf of the

          5  Committee and myself, I appreciate your testimony.

          6  And again, I would like to restate that, as the

          7  Chairman of the Committee, I mostly depend on

          8  organizations, such as yours, JPAC, and others - -

          9                 MS. GENN:  We work closely with them

         10  and we will be visiting you as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And you have been

         12  very helpful in guiding me and advising also and

         13  helping us work for the senior citizens.  Any

         14  organization that is willing, I'm open, and I need

         15  your support, I need your help and your advice.

         16                 It is very interesting that reading

         17  your testimony, you said that, "since January 2002

         18  there are 73,000 EPIC customers in New York City."

         19                 MS. GENN:  That is correct, I got

         20  that data, you are going to get it within a week or

         21  so from EPIC, they are coming out with their annual

         22  report.  I just called them and tried to get some

         23  updated information, so I could include it in the

         24  testimony.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes, and you are

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  saying that 22,000 out of the 73,000 are located in

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 MS. GENN:  That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You mean that

          6  Brooklyn has a third?

          7                 MS. GENN:  Well Brooklyn has the

          8  largest senior population among the five counties,

          9  and also, sadly, many of them, I think about 19

         10  percent are actually at the poverty level.  So, yes,

         11  we really need it, we use it.  Brooklyn- wide and

         12  all of the other groups that work with us, work very

         13  hard to get more people in.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  May I ask you for

         15  a favor?

         16                 MS. GENN:  Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Could you find me

         18  the number for the Bronx?

         19                 MS. GENN:  I will call them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

         21  Any member have any question for Ms. Genn.

         22                 MS. GENN:  I will not be in my office

         23  today, I will try to do it tomorrow.  All right?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, thank you,

         25  thank you. Simcha Felder.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Hi, how are

          3  you?

          4                 MS. GENN:  Hi, I'm good, thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  How many

          6  people, this is unrelated to the meeting today,

          7  general question, how many elderly people do you

          8  think, what percentage of the population that is out

          9  there that could take advantage of EPIC is not

         10  taking advantage of it?

         11                 MS. GENN:  It's a really good

         12  question, and it is a question I asked.  I did not

         13  really get an answer, and I looked at some of the

         14  most recent data, the last Census, and I, it is hard

         15  to read through all of it, to tell you the truth, I

         16  just have not found that yet, and I had hoped to

         17  include it, but I will keep looking.  I cannot give

         18  you an answer to how many would be eligible, I

         19  honestly do not know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, second,

         21  despite it being an election year, I know that the

         22  State has sent out mailings a number of times with

         23  the EPIC Program, in general.  Do you think, or can

         24  you think of other ways that the EPIC Program can be

         25  disseminated to people?  It is obvious that there
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          2  are a lot of people that can take advantage of it

          3  that are not.  Right?

          4                 MS. GENN:  Yes, absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So are there

          6  any suggestions that you have for us?

          7                 MS. GENN:  Yes, I know a number of

          8  Legislators at the State level, I am most familiar

          9  with them, and I get them.  But they send out

         10  information letters periodically.  And they include

         11  this information, sometimes in their offices, and

         12  I'm sure in yours, their are staff people who are

         13  there and who would help.

         14                 If I remember correctly, last year,

         15  the Comptroller's Office had sent something out

         16  reminding people about EPIC.  I know DFTA has done

         17  so, and the organizations that you heard today send

         18  out and come and address, as we do, when we go to

         19  groups and we hold workshops.  We never fail to

         20  offer this, to let them know that it is available

         21  and to discuss, in a general way, what the

         22  guidelines are.  And in each senior center there is

         23  usually some person who can help them on a one- to-

         24  one basis, or they can call us and we will try to

         25  make the arrangements and help them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Mr. Chairman,

          3  I was wondering if maybe we could suggest to the

          4  Speaker, you know, if you can suggest, if you would

          5  be kind enough, that either maybe the Speaker can do

          6  a general mailing that would not come out of our

          7  budgets, that - -  I'm very serious, not only

          8  regarding EPIC, but I'm sure that as the hearings

          9  are going on, I know I, myself, in sitting in on a

         10  number of hearings and hearing about many programs

         11  that different parts of the City, different

         12  communities are not taking advantage of.  And I

         13  think it would be a great thing for us, especially

         14  if it doesn't cost us any money, and it cost the

         15  Speaker the money, to send out this mailing to

         16  inform the citizenry of a variety of programs and to

         17  make it very clear that there are a lot

         18  of people that are not taking advantage of this

         19  program.

         20                 MS. GENN:  I hope - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  And if you

         22  don't want to make the recommendation, I don't mind

         23  doing it myself, but since it is your Committee, I'm

         24  asking you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I'm willing to, I
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          2  will send a resolution for you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, I'm

          4  very serious.  I think it is very important.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, I know you

          6  are serious, I'm just trying to be - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I know, you

          8  are trying to give me a good time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, I think it is

         10  a good idea, and I think we, all together, should do

         11  something.

         12                 MS. GENN:  Reverend Diaz, on our

         13  citywide stations, I wonder, I would hope that - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  It's a great

         15  idea.

         16                 MS. GENN: - -  something like this

         17  might be broadcast.  But if not, you might have some

         18  sort of presentation and give people who are

         19  knowledgeable the opportunity to talk about it and

         20  share it.  And also tell people where they can get

         21  this information.

         22                 It is very hard, we are in business

         23  since, EPIC is since 1986, and still you are

         24  correct, Councilman Felder, I know that there are

         25  probably huge numbers, maybe 50 percent of the
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          2  people who are eligible who still have not joined

          3  up, and they don't know.  Many people, by the way,

          4  who have plans, prescription drug plans, if they

          5  meet other criteria in terms of income, once that

          6  runs out and they cannot use that, they can then

          7  turn to EPIC. So there is a vast amount of material

          8  that they really should have available, and has to

          9  be done over and over again, --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Right.

         11                 MS. GENN: - -  until it kind of

         12  really sinks in.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So a

         14  campaign.  But we have an unbelievable Chair of the

         15  Aging Committee, and a Subcommittee Chair who is

         16  here, and they are very passionate about it.  And if

         17  at a minimum, if I can ask, if you don't mind, since

         18  your staff will be doing the work, if you will be

         19  willing, really to issue a memo to all the Council

         20  members to let them know the discoveries of this

         21  meeting, which was so important, besides the other

         22  issue, that there are a lot of people who can use

         23  EPIC who are not taking advantage of it.  Maybe we,

         24  if the Speaker doesn't want to do it, we can put it

         25  in our newsletters and try to get the information
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          2  out.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me tell you

          4  that I'm new in the City Council, I just started in

          5  January.  One of the most important things that has

          6  happened to me and that I have found in City Council

          7  is that the Speaker, being a young person, is a

          8  person with great concern, with great respect, and

          9  great desire to do everything possible to help

         10  senior citizens.  He has opened every door possible

         11  for me and from the Committee to do whatever is

         12  necessary for us.

         13                 MS. GENN:  I hope that means your

         14  Resolution will pass through the whole City Council,

         15  then.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Which one, this

         17  one?

         18                 MS. GENN:  Yes, Resolution 60- A.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I have no doubt

         20  that the Speaker will support this Resolution and

         21  that the Speaker is doing everything possible.  So

         22  as I was saying, he is as open, he has open door and

         23  he has given me all the power and all the support

         24  enough to do whatever.  And I'm pretty sure that he,

         25  your suggestion will be very well taken into the
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          2  Speaker, availability of funds.  Because we are

          3  going through a very difficult situation.

          4                 MS. GENN:  Tell him the advocates say

          5  set your priorities right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, he is, no,

          7  I would like to restate or reinforce or repeat, the

          8  Speaker is a person that have given the support, and

          9  he has shown that during the budget negotiation and

         10  with the budget in supporting education, aging, top

         11  priorities.  So there is no doubt.

         12                 Ladies and gentlemen, please, welcome

         13  him with no doubt that the most supporting person

         14  that I have gotten in this City Council is Speaker

         15  Miller.  And he respects and he has given me all the

         16  support and all the necessary tools for me to work

         17  and to make this Committee work.

         18                 And so I appreciate your suggestion

         19  and it will be taken into consideration and it will

         20  be conveyed to the Speaker.

         21                 MS. GENN:  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  One minute,

         23  one minute.

         24                 MS. GENN:  To date, I will tell you

         25  that is our feeling as well about the entire new
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          2  City Council, so we are looking forward to great

          3  things.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Mr. Chair,

          5  I'm not done, you cannot shut up me up so quickly.

          6  I'm sorry, is it okay?  I just have one other thing.

          7    Is that okay?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I'm open, you know

          9  I'm a nice Chairman, I give you all the time you

         10  need.  I mean, I don't do to others as others do

         11  unto me.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'm not going

         13  to respond to that, I have no idea what you are

         14  talking about.  But I agree with everything you said

         15  about the Speaker.  I just wanted him to get credit

         16  for the suggestion, that is all.

         17                 I have one last question.  I have my

         18  parents statements, they have supplemental, some

         19  kind of supplemental coverage that - -

         20                 MS. GENN:  The Medi Gap policy, - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, sort of.

         22                 MS. GENN: - -  they have Medicare and

         23  the Medi. Supp. Policy.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'm looking

         25  at this, and maybe I should speak to you about it,
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          2  personally, but this way I know it will get done.

          3  Bear with me for a minute.

          4                 So this shows that last year my

          5  father had to spend out- of- pocket about $1,500, my

          6  mother about $300.  Do you have people on your

          7  staff, for example, that if we have constituents who

          8  are trying to calculate whether it is worth their

          9  spending the money on the EPIC Program, that we can

         10  send them to you or something like that?

         11                 MS. GENN:  As a matter of fact, I

         12  don't, we don't, there are two of us for the

         13  Borough.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I see.

         15                 MS. GENN:  So you begin to get a

         16  picture.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.

         18                 MS. GENN:  However, we do have some

         19  seniors, one among them, who is really an insurance

         20  expert, and he has been invaluable to us, and he has

         21  just gone through all of the list of Med. Sup.

         22  Policies, and he has shown differences among them.

         23  And many people have chosen to change from what they

         24  have to another policy.  There is a matter of

         25  loyalty and faith to organizations.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  No problem.

          3                 MS. GENN:  It is very complex.  But

          4  certainly, -             COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:

          5  What is his number?

          6                 MS. GENN:  I'm not going to give it

          7  to you, publicly now, I cannot do that.  He is a

          8  senior and a volunteer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, no

         10  problem.

         11                 MS. GENN:  But I will talk to you

         12  about it, privately.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Absolutely,

         14  absolutely.

         15                 MS. GENN:  I do not have the

         16  authority to do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  No problem,

         18  no problem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, thank

         20  you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  No problem, I

         22  didn't mean to put you on the spot.

         23                 MS. GENN:  No, you didn't.  I tried

         24  to answer as honestly as I could.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I appreciate
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          2  it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Felder.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Do you want

          6  me to leave now, Reverend?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  Felder, we hear you, loud and clear.  But you know,

          9  we have got to deal, you and me.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I will

         11  behave, I promise, I will be quiet for the rest of

         12  the meeting.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Do you want me to

         14  say, - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  In writing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You don't want to

         17  repeat it in here.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Wait until

         19  the report has come up.  Okay?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Michael Nelson has

         23  a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.  We may have is a loco, Education First,
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          2  but I and a few others have Education and Aging

          3  first.

          4                 MS. GENN:  Well our mission is to

          5  educate, network and advocate.  And we recognize

          6  that that is part of our responsibility as well.  So

          7  thank you, yes, we consider that a major, major part

          8  of our mission and responsibility.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, it is

         10  sort of a version of a womb to tomb situation, I

         11  think most of us are concerned with overall.

         12                 And it is always good to see you in

         13  Brooklyn or in the Hall, and so many other members

         14  here, I consider the senior protectorate league,

         15  that come and keep our feet to the fire and try to

         16  do the best that you can for seniors.

         17                 I was just going to ask you a quick

         18  question, Ms. Genn.  The Senior Center Executive

         19  Directors, I believe they all have information about

         20  EPIC.  It is brought to senior centers I would

         21  think.

         22                 MS. GENN:  DFTA, absolutely sends it

         23  out --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Not that it

         25  is 100 percent exclusive to seniors.
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          2                 MS. GENN:  It sends it, they send

          3  them out to every single center, EPIC does.  EPIC

          4  has staff people that are happy to come out, it may

          5  take time, because they are as understaffed as

          6  everyone else, and they will address groups on it,

          7  and they will send information.  There is an 800

          8  number so that they will send information to you.

          9  There is no question.

         10                 Not all senior centers, I don't

         11  believe, have case workers or people who can

         12  necessarily go over each thing on a one to- one

         13  basis, depending on the issue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well they

         15  should know that they can go their Council member.

         16                 MS. GENN:  But there are a number of

         17  sources.  And if anyone who is interested, any

         18  senior would call us.  If we cannot help them, you

         19  know, quickly like over the phone, we will help them

         20  and find them a place to go to get that one- on- one

         21  help.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And of course

         23  it is not the universe.  Do you have a ball park

         24  figure about how many seniors do participate in

         25  senior centers, is it 10 percent, is it 20 percent?
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          2                 MS. GENN:  My understanding is that

          3  about 10 percent, which is part of, in a sense, the

          4  problem, because you then have to recognize the huge

          5  numbers of seniors outside.  There are over 300,000

          6  just in Brooklyn, and if you look at 10 percent or

          7  so, and I don't what it is in Brooklyn, that is a

          8  citywide average, you begin to see that the problem

          9  really is a humongous one in terms of the need to

         10  get out, reach seniors who are in other places and

         11  congregate or who are in their homes and get the

         12  information to them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  Thank

         14  you, again, it is good to see you Shirley.  Simcha,

         15  do you have any more questions, before I, okay?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Are you

         17  accusing me?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We have one last

         19  testimony, and after this testimony I advise all the

         20  members of the Committee, which I am very happy, we

         21  are all here today, that we are going to take a

         22  vote.

         23                 So the last testimony, thank you, and

         24  we appreciate it.

         25                 MS. GENN:  Oh, how great, good, I'm
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          2  going to wait for that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Ms.

          4  Genn, and I appreciate it, and on behalf of this

          5  Aging Committee and myself, I appreciate your

          6  support to Resolution 60- A.

          7                 MS GENN:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And we have been

          9  joined by two members, Domenic Recchia and Kendall

         10  Stewart.

         11                 The next and last testimony that we

         12  are going to hear from a lady that I have known for,

         13  I will not say because then they are going to

         14  believe that I'm old.  But this lady, Suleika

         15  Cabrera Drinane from the Institute of Puerto Rican

         16  and Hispanic Elderly, I have known her for more than

         17  20 years, doing all with the same thing, fighting

         18  and advocating for senior citizens.

         19                 Good morning, Ms. Suleika.  And

         20  again, after this testimony, we will be taking a

         21  vote.  Good morning, Ms. Suleika.

         22                 MS. DRINANE:  Good morning.  I want

         23  to thank you and commend the Committee on Aging for

         24  really recommending this Resolution, and I also want

         25  to thank you for inviting me.  I guess, I'm sort of
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          2  torn between the questions, and if, Mr. Simcha

          3  Felder, needed information, we will be more than

          4  glad to help him.  Because we have had, we have

          5  limited case workers in our agency that just do

          6  that, link the seniors with the services and the

          7  services with the seniors.

          8                 And the other aspect is that I do

          9  have some statistics here, Reverend Diaz, on the

         10  numbers of people in EPIC and the numbers of people

         11  that it has increased steadily, and enrollment

         12  continues to rise steadily and is currently at

         13  272,765 seniors that are being served.  Yet, when

         14  you look at those numbers, the EPIC program from the

         15  very inception, which we were part of the coalition

         16  in advocating for prescription drugs, so that we

         17  could also have dealt more with SSI and other

         18  issues, way back, we, the numbers have far exceeded

         19  the projected numbers in terms of EPIC enrollment.

         20  Yet, even with that, even with a simple enrollment

         21  form, a lot of our seniors that are eligible are not

         22  receiving the appropriate information in

         23  relationship to helping fill out the application,

         24  itself.  And that means in terms of language, even

         25  though they do outreach, you also need the workers
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          2  there to help with the enrollment of the senior, and

          3  assist them with really doing the applications.  So

          4  I just wanted to add that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So how do you

          6  suggest we could have that?

          7                 MS. DRINANE:  Well, I think we could

          8  really have discussions with EPIC, I think it is a

          9  combination besides training, and I know monies are

         10  very tight at this point, but what is happening to

         11  all our organizations that are helping with case

         12  assistance and case management, a lot of the monies

         13  are being deteriorated for those agencies, and the

         14  numbers are far exceeding that.

         15                 For example, I could tell you that

         16  before 9/11 we had in our Central Office, we had an

         17  average of about, walk- ins, an average of 20 walk-

         18  ins a day.  And that, without your regular clients

         19  that you made appointments, and they were from all

         20  over the City.  And yet, you had to call in workers

         21  from the outside to help you assist the clients.  So

         22  right now we had, so therefore, you have to limit

         23  you hours of walk- ins, because you are not able to

         24  serve them as effectively as you would like.  And

         25  the money is not there to get the case workers to be
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          2  able to do that.

          3                 It's not a question just of outreach,

          4  it's a question that you have reached the people,

          5  but then you have to make sure that they get the

          6  proper information, like the Medi Gap Insurance.

          7  But the EPIC, what is important is that the

          8  information, besides, I must say that they do

          9  outreach in terms of the media, in terms of the

         10  Spanish stations and all that, but then you have to

         11  make sure that the people, with even some of the

         12  centers, that they are immediately being able to be

         13  assisted.

         14                 So let me, and I can give you these

         15  things here later, on the statistics that you were

         16  requesting.

         17                 My name is Suleika Cabrera Drinane,

         18  and I'm with the Institute for the Puerto Rican,

         19  Hispanic Elderly.  I'm the Founder and Executive

         20  Director, and also involved with the Hispanic Senior

         21  Action Council, which is our advocacy- wide

         22  constituent.

         23                 The Institute directly and indirectly

         24  serves over 140,000 seniors a year.  And the issue

         25  of assisting minority seniors in overcoming the ever
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          2  increasing costs of prescription drugs is of vital

          3  interest and concern.  We have been working on that

          4  and also trying to get the improvements of EPIC from

          5  way back with other coalitions, as was said.

          6                 And I am not going to repeat a lot of

          7  the things that were said already.  Experts say that

          8  currently out- of- pocket costs for medical- related

          9  needs for low- and low- middle- income seniors is 25

         10  percent of income and rising.  At the same time,

         11  that cost for apartment rentals rise the 40 to 50

         12  percent of their income.  And that leaves little

         13  enough for all other cost of living.  They are very

         14  vulnerable and with few recourses. Remember, an

         15  excessive number of low- and low- middle- income

         16  seniors depend on Social Security benefits for 50 to

         17  100 percent of income. And when you look at SSI over

         18  51 percent of the seniors that are eligible for SSI,

         19  which is Supplementary Insurance Income for Seniors,

         20  over 51 percent are not receiving that benefit.

         21                 They cannot afford any more costs and

         22  they cannot afford to lose any supports that are in

         23  place.  When 9/11 struck, in New York City, and

         24  almost 3,000 workers were lost to terrorism, the

         25  response of the State, the City, the population at
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          2  large was tremendous and reflected the heart and

          3  soul of New Yorkers and others.  Yet, the health and

          4  lives of hundreds of thousands of Hispanic and other

          5  ethnic racial minority seniors are at risk, and

          6  government cries poverty and wants to cut that

          7  lifeline to survival.  There is something wrong with

          8  that reasoning.

          9                 Prescription drug costs keep rising

         10  and what seems to be some contest between drug

         11  companies and government jockeying for position, if

         12  a prescription coverage is added to Medicare. They

         13  do not seem to care about the elderly cut caught in

         14  the middle and suffering.  They do not care that

         15  elderly New Yorkers must choose between food and

         16  medicine.  One worries about profits and the others

         17  about balancing a budget that is distorted because

         18  of poor management and judgements.  Now the elderly

         19  who need all the help they can get are being, once

         20  again, sacrificed to mismanaged and fiscal abuse,

         21  annual waste of resources or unnecessary projects or

         22  subsidies.

         23                 I do not believe that seniors and

         24  their families and supporters should take this

         25  lightly.  We can do without one or two government
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          2  projects for a while, if it means protecting the

          3  health of our seniors.  The government must make a

          4  choice of priorities, the elderly, the real estate

          5  association, the developers, the corporations.  We

          6  are watching, then we, too, will make good choice.

          7  Government choice must to cap the out- of- pocket

          8  prescription costs of low- and low- income minority

          9  seniors at 5 percent of incomes to help them be

         10  healthy without using all of their resources.

         11                 So therefore, we support the

         12  Resolution 60- A, EPIC cap out- of- pocket expense,

         13  which is very critical to seniors.  I urge the

         14  passage of Resolution No. 60- A, which supports

         15  State legislation to limit the cost- sharing of

         16  responsibilities to participants in the Elderly

         17  Insurance Program, EPIC.

         18                 There are two other enhancement bills

         19  that we completely support, which were mentioned by

         20  the Department for the Aging, and also with the New

         21  York Statewide Senior Action Council. What I'm

         22  concerned is that we should always make sure that we

         23  don't sacrifice EPIC for other programs that,

         24  because it has some money that it keeps being

         25  drained, that it shouldn't be drained, as well as
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          2  for Medicare, when we look at Washington, the

          3  program in Washington that is being projected is

          4  even less than the benefits that EPIC has.

          5                 The importance of this is that, the

          6  other aspect of it is that people should not be

          7  penalized because they are a married couple.  And

          8  when you look at EPIC sometimes they are paying

          9  double the amount.  There is an example that is very

         10  simple, is that, for example, a person who is an

         11  individual who has $30,000 income, they pay about a

         12  $900 deductible.  While a married person, who has an

         13  income for $30,000 pay, each of them will be paying

         14  about $725 each, which is $1,450.  So when you look

         15  at it as double the amount, and therefore, we are

         16  saying that couples should not be penalized.

         17                 But I really want to support your

         18  efforts and I hope that everybody realizes that this

         19  is very critical for our communities, because people

         20  are really sacrificing themselves to decide whether

         21  they are going to be paying their housing and their

         22  food or their prescriptions.  And I think it is very

         23  important.

         24                 And I think the other aspect is that

         25  the bilingual, biculturalism and the assistance for
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          2  people in, not just outreach, outreach is very

          3  important, but as well as making sure that workers

          4  understand the program and are able to assist the

          5  seniors with the application, itself.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  I

          7  appreciate your support to Resolution 60- A, and I

          8  appreciate your coming here to testify.

          9                 MS. DRINANE:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Any questions for Suleika Cabrera Drinane?

         12  If not, we will go on. Thank you, Ms. Drinane, we

         13  appreciate it, thank you very much.

         14                 We need, where did she go?  Ladies

         15  and gentlemen, after listening to so many

         16  testimonies, I would like to note that none of the

         17  testimony were against, everyone was in favor.  But

         18  this Committee is ready to take a vote to express

         19  our position on Resolution 60- A, and I'm going to

         20  do a roll call, and going to start now by calling

         21  first, to vote, I'm going to call first to my left -

         22   -  Oh, you can do it, okay, thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Diaz.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Fully support.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  May I be

          3  excused to explain my vote?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I want to

          6  make sure that I'm a co- prime on this.  Thank you,

          7  I vote aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dilan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  May I be

         12  excused to explain my vote?  I vote in favor of this

         13  bill, but I just want to commend you, Mr. Chairman,

         14  for the excellent job that you are doing with this

         15  Committee.  And I have been throughout my district

         16  visiting the senior centers, and after talking

         17  highly about me as their Council person, the next

         18  person they talk highly about is you.  And so I

         19  commend you and vote yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Recchia.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Mr. Chair,

         24  having not studied this clearly, I vote yes, because

         25  of hearing what you were saying this morning.  I am
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          2  now studying it, but I feel that we should support

          3  the seniors in every form and every matter that we

          4  can get an opportunity to do so.  I vote yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gallagher.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  May I be

          7  excused to explain my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Mr.

         10  Chairman, I wanted to join my colleague, Council

         11  Member Foster in praising your leadership on this

         12  Committee, and in particular, I know I say this

         13  often, but I want to express to you my appreciation

         14  for your senior speakouts and bringing the City

         15  Council Committee on Aging to each and everyone of

         16  the boroughs.  I think that is an effective way to

         17  make accountability and accessibility in government,

         18  and I appreciate that.  And I appreciate your

         19  introduction of this Reso., and I enthusiastically

         20  vote aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 7 in the

         22  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         23  the item is adopted. Please, sign the Committee

         24  report.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Ladies and

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  gentlemen, I appreciate all of you, Committee

          3  members.  Without your support, without your

          4  participation, this Committee would have no work.

          5  So I'm very proud, I'm very honored that to have all

          6  of you as a member of this Committee, and today with

          7  this resolution that this Committee have introduced

          8  and passed, I would like to again express my thanks,

          9  appreciation to all of you.

         10                 And with that, this meeting is

         11  adjourned.  Thank you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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